
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 


1 


 


 


 


 
Gunnison County, CO 


Community Development Department 
221 N. Wisconsin St. Ste. D, Gunnison, CO 81230 


Phone: (970) 641-0360      FAX: (970) 641-8585 
Website: www.gunnisoncounty.org/planning.html 


Email: planning@gunnisoncounty.org 
 


To: PC Members  


From: Community Development Department Services Manager Beth Baker 


Date: November 8, 2012 


 
 
Included in your packet for the Planning Packet: 


November 16, 2012 Planning Commission Meeting  
 


  


Draft Agenda- 11/16/12    
    


Minutes- Draft – October 19 and November 2    
    
SG Interests – Sperry Clinger- Possible Action    


    
Nichols- Possible Action    
    
Watclarenone – Work Session and Site Visit    
    
Citizen Access Information and File #’s  
For entire file access 


   


    
 
 
Any documents submitted to Community Development after this packet is mailed will be e-mailed to you. 
 
Thanks, 
Beth Baker 
Community Development Department 



http://www.gunnisoncounty.org/planning.html

mailto:planning@gunnisoncounty.org






 
 


 12 November 02 PC Minutes 
 Page 1 


                                                             Date of Approval 


  


GUNNISON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
PRELIMINARY AGENDA: Friday, November 2, 2012 


 


Draft Minutes 
 
9:00 a.m. • Call to order; determine quorum 


Board of County Commissioners/Planning Commission Joint Meeting: 
Items to be discussed by the Board and Planning Commission are in the following order:  


A. Sage-grouse Subcommittee – Update from Jim Cochran & Ramon Reed 
1. Status of Listing 
2. Threatened vs. Endangered 
3. Potential Land Use Resolution changes 


B. Oil and Gas  -  
1. Bull Mt. Unit Master Plan EIS – Ramon Reed 
2. Possible update on COGCC Hearing – Federal 11-90-9 Well Project 


C. Legislation Update – Hap Channell 
D. Carbon Policy Taskforce Discussion – Hap Channell 
E. Other Topics 


  
Lunch  
  
1:00 p.m. Gunnison Valley Properties, LLC, joint public hearing/no action, Sketch Plan, request for a year-round 


sand and gravel operation on 109-acres of a 220-acre parcel; 62-acres of which will be excavated. The 
operation will include the extraction, crushing, screening, washing and stockpiling of approximately 
200,000 tons of sand and gravel per year.  Asphalt and concrete batching is also proposed to be 
conducted at the facility.  The property is located approximately ½ mile east of the City of Gunnison, 
south of Highway 50, legally described as being located in the NE/4 SE/4 NW/4 Section 4 and the 
NE/4NE/4 Section 5, Township 49 North, Range 1 East, N.M.P.M., 43188 Highway 50 


  
2:00 p.m. John Nichols, public hearing/work session/possible action, request for a concrete batch plant and 


storage yard for heavy equipment, located on Lot 4, Riverland Industrial Park, F #1, south of the Town of 
Crested Butte, west of Highway 135 


  
3:00 p.m. Watclarenone, Tim Watson, Majestic Mesa Monastery,  work session/no action, request for a 


seasonal, mediation lodge, legally described as being located in  TR 102 (E2NE4 & E2SE4) SEC 12,13 & 
TR 103 (W2NE4) SEC 12 48N5W 238.59 ACRES, 9380 Highway 50, approximately 35 miles west of the 
City of Gunnison 


  
  
  
Adjourn  
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 
 


 12 November 02 PC Minutes 
 Page 2 


                                                             Date of Approval 


  


 
 
 


GUNNISON COUNTY  PLANNING COMMISSION 
Regular Meeting 


November 2, 2012 
**** 


 
The Gunnison County Planning Commission conducted a regular meeting, in the Commissioners’ Meeting Room in the 
Blackstocks Government Center, Planning Commission meeting room.  Present were: 
 
Chairman- Ramon Reed   Assistant Director of Community Development- Neal Starkebaum  
Vice- Chairman-Jim Seitz   Community Development Department Services Manager-Beth Baker  
Commissioner-Susan Eskew     
Commissioner-Warren Wilcox   Board of County Commissioners: 
Commissioner-Kent Fulton   Hap Channell  
Alternate Commissioner- Jeremy Rubingh Paula Swenson 
Alternate Commissioner- A. J. Cattles  Phil Chamberland 
 
      Others present as listed in text 


**** 
With a quorum present Chairman Ramon Reed opened the regular meeting of the Planning Commission. 
 


**** 
Board of County Commissioners/Planning Commission Joint Meeting: 
 
• Sage-grouse Subcommittee – Update  


• Status of Listing- Gunnison County Wildlife Coordinator Jim Cochran explained the Fish and Wildlife Service 
has received a postponement of their listing, from September 30, 2012 to December 30, 2012.  The proposal is 
now being written by their office in Grand Junction, Co.  When published there will be a 60 day comment period.  
The final ruling deadline is September 30, 2013.  The finding can be; the species is endangered and listed as 
such, the species is threatened and listed in that status, or the species is not eligible for listing and it drops off the 
list.   


 
Wildlife Coordinator Cochran explained if the species is determined to be endangered certain activities would be 
prohibited; harassment, harm, pursuing, hunting, etc., or an attempt to do any of these. This has historically 
generally referred to agricultural activities.    A listing of threatened rather than endangered would likely to have 
less impact on agricultural uses. 
 
Wildlife Coordinator Cochran said on public lands the Fish and Wildlife Service has greater jurisdiction, if 
determined to be endangered there would be no exemptions given on public land.  Cochran added the Fish and 
Wildlife Service has not made a decision to classify the species threatened or endangered.  
 
Wildlife Coordinator Cochran said a Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP) is not automatically triggered by either the 
endangered or threatened designation. A HCP must be applied for.  He said there could be community benefits to 
an umbrella HCP.  If a project is proposed on private land and there is no HCP in place, the applicant/landowner 
would be required to provide their HCP.   Cochran noted the difficulty with a HCP is the time it takes to have them 
approved.   
 
Wildlife Coordinator Cochran pointed out if the County authorized an applicant to proceed with their development 
of the parcel, and Fish and Wildlife disagreed, the County could be sued.  The issue is at what level the County 
should have input from Fish and Wildlife; a porch addition to a large residence.  Cochran noted currently his office 
is contacted for comments when an application is made within Sage grouse habitat.  He also noted Fish and 
Wildlife appreciate the Gunnison County mapping component.     
 







 
 


 12 November 02 PC Minutes 
 Page 3 


                                                             Date of Approval 


  


Chairman Reed distributed a report he had prepared.  He has focused on how things could be dealt with by the 
Commission.  He stated the County needs to be proactive in dealing with the potential listing.  His suggestions 
were made from that viewpoint.  He said the Gunnison County Land Use Resolution (LUR) regulations in regards 
to Sage grouse should be tightened.  He cited several examples of building envelopes in Sage grouse habitat, 
noting the building envelope should be as minimal in size as possible; resulting in less habitat fragmentation.  
Clustering can leave a great deal of habitat undisturbed.  The biggest impacts seemed to be fragmentation by 
roads and power lines; they could be dealt with by the Planning Commission and BOCC. The mapping tool which 
has been developed is helpful when determining if the application is within Sage grouse habitat.  He noted Wildlife 
Coordinator Cochran conducts pre-application conferences and also conducts on the ground investigations.  
Cochran agreed the mapping tool is a very good start in the investigation.  
 
Chairman Reed said there is an opportunity for planning because of the new mapping tool; there is more potential 
to see the impacts of roads, and power lines, etc., on undeveloped land.  He suggested working with the power 
company to help them place power lines to decrease habitat fragmentation.  He added being proactive would 
result in fewer impacts.   
 
BOCC-Channell thanked Chairman Reed for his efforts and challenged the Planning Commission and the County 
to respect and consider the recommendations made moving forward.  
 


• Oil and Gas- 
 


Bull Mt. Unit Master Plan EIS – Chairman Reed said he had spoken the Uncompahgre Field office representative 
Barb Sharrow. He was told the master plan/ EIS is in the works, but there is not a time limit.  The BOCC will be 
notified when it takes place.  Reed also mentioned the air quality; there is a potential impact on the Maroon Bell.  If 
they determine there is a potential impact, they can’t issue a FONSI, and an EIS is required.   
 
Chairman Reed explained the majority of the Bull Mountain Unit is private surface, and Federal mineral rights.  The 
Federal regulations will only apply if the surface rights are federal.  The County should look closely to have the same 
conditions apply to all of the wells in the unit.  Reed suggested working with the State to protect air quality and view- 
sheds; the County could be a cooperating agency.   
 


• Federal 11-90-9- The court hearing has been scheduled for mid November 2012.  SG’s draft EA has been changed to 
an EIS.   


 
• Legislation Update -BOCC Channell said there was nothing on the horizon.   He briefly described the legislative 


process of Colorado Counties Inc. (CCI.)   
 
• Carbon Policy Taskforce Discussion – BOCC Channell would like the BOCC to direct the Commission to review 


the Taskforce recommendations and contemplate if they could work within the confines of the Gunnison County Land 
Use Resolution (LUR.)   Chairman Reed asked Richard Karas to participate with the Commission in the review.      


 
Commissioner Eskew left the meeting. 
 
Other Topics- Reed requested the BOCC to consider the cumulative impacts additional development has on the Highway 
50 corridor east of the City of Gunnison.     
 
Assistant Director of Community Development Neal Starkebaum identified the tentative dates for the 2013 BOCC/ PC 
joint meetings: March 15, June 21 and October 18, 2013.   
 


**** 
Gunnison Valley Properties, LLC; The Gunnison County Planning Commission and the Board of County 
Commissioners conducted a joint public hearing.  The review the applicant’s Sketch Plan, request for a year-round sand 
and gravel operation on 109-acres of a 220-acre parcel; 62-acres of which will be excavated. The operation will include 
the extraction, crushing, screening, washing and stockpiling of approximately 200,000 tons of sand and gravel per year.  
Asphalt and concrete batching is also proposed to be conducted at the facility.  The property is located approximately ½ 







 
 


 12 November 02 PC Minutes 
 Page 4 


                                                             Date of Approval 


  


mile east of the City of Gunnison, south of Highway 50, legally described as being located in the NE/4 SE/4 NW/4 Section 
4 and the NE/4NE/4 Section 5, Township 49 North, Range 1 East, N.M.P.M., 43188 Highway 50. 
Commissioner Wilcox has been recused from this review.   
 
Board of County Commissioners; Hap Channell, Paula Swenson and Phil Chamberland attended the joint public hearing.   
 
With a quorum present Chairman Ramon Reed opened the joint public hearing. 
 
Community Development Services Manager Beth Baker confirmed the applicant had provided the certified mailing 
receipts and proof of posting; the planning office had the public notice published in the Gunnison Country Times and the 
Crested Butte News. 
 
Applicant’s representatives Richard Bratton and applicant’s representative Consulting Engineer with Greg Lewicki and 
Associates Ben Langenfeld were present to represent Gunnison Valley Properties.   
 
Applicant’s representative Bratton addressed the issue of the necessity for another gravel pit.  He noted proving necessity 
is not a Gunnison County Land Use Resolution (LUR) requirement.  He addressed the issue because it had come up in 
the prior work session.  He said he had been contacted two years ago, concerning the lack of competition and the inflated 
gravel prices charged reflecting that.  
 
Engineer Bob Williams explained competition is an economic consideration.  He distributed a chart describing what 
happens when there is competition in the market place and when there is not. When there is competition the prices are 
significantly less.  Competition is healthy from a cost stand point but also a quality view point. The consumer is the winner 
when there is competition.  
 
City of Gunnison City Manager Ken Coleman said a competitive marketplace helps the tax payers.  The City could do 
much more if there was competition in the market place.     
 
Local contractor Steve Crittendon said it is prohibitive not to have competition in the marketplace.  The quality of the 
product could be better too.  
 
Local contractor Bill Lacey agreed competition is advantageous. He supports this application.   
 
Applicant representative Langenfeld explained the plan is to start out in the east area of the mine and move on.  They will 
not mine through the wetlands. There will be approximately 70 acres of disturbance.  The depth of the pit will be 
approximately 49 ft.; it will require dewatering.   They anticipate mining between 100 to 200 thousand tons per year.  They 
have considered the highest use in determining their mitigation plan.  They will use a two tier slope system, and reuse 
their back fill.  The hours of operation are 6 a.m. to 7 p.m., Monday through Saturday.   If there would be a need for any 
extension of hours they would have to come through the County with the request.  The majority of the work will be done 
from mid April to mid October   
 
Applicant representative Langenfeld explained by placing the equipment in the SE corner of phase one, the visual impacts 
can be minimized with berms, and they will not have to constantly dewater the pit.  They intent to backfill as they go; when 
the mining is complete the pit will be a lake.    
 
Applicant representative Langenfeld said they will mitigate visual impacts along Highway 50 with a berm moving ahead of 
the pit.  Applicant representative Bratton added they are considering working with the adjacent land owner Hal Hearn and 
possibly the County to plant trees along the ditch on Highway 50.    
 
Applicant representative Langenfeld said they will use quiet back up alarms on the large equipment; they could do a 
baseline noise study. The noise will be down 50 ft in the pit.  They will aggressively water the road early on and maybe lay 
down gravel on the road, to mitigate dust issues.  There is a CDOT access permit which does not require any highway 
improvements.  Most of the traffic will head toward Gunnison. 
 







 
 


 12 November 02 PC Minutes 
 Page 5 


                                                             Date of Approval 


  


Applicant representative Langenfeld said the ground water (dewatering) will go through a sediment screen and be 
discharged.  He said the State regulates dewatering with discharge permits. The applicant’s have applied for 
augmentation water.  A weed management will be done. 
 
Applicant representative Langenfeld said the site is over a mile from the nearest Sage grouse lek.  He added because it 
has been a working cattle ranch and there on fences on site it is not wildlife friendly.   
 
Applicant representative Bratton said aesthetics is a concern for him.  Neighbor Hal Hearn and the County may be 
interested in working with Bratton to plant trees along Highway 50.  He said he is willing to invest money with others to 
beautify Highway 50 at that location. 
 
Staff 
 
Assistant Director Neal Starkebaum identified comments received from Butch Clark, Nick Spallone, Aaron MacLennan, 
the Division of Parks and Wildlife, and the Gunnison County Sage grouse coordinator. The Commission has requested 
additional comments from Parks and Wildlife because of the possibility the dewatering of the pit impacting the Tomichi 
Creek fishery.   
 
PC- BOCC 
 
Commissioner Seitz asked the location of the proposed haul road; Applicant representative Langenfeld said into the pit 
along the outside edge, as it grows.   
 
BOCC- Channell asked City of Gunnison Manager Ken Coleman if this application adequately addresses the City’s Three 
Mile Plan; City of Gunnison Manager Coleman said this application addresses the plan because the urban growth 
boundary will not change.  The City’s Three Mile Plan has not been updated since the Gunnison Rising annexation. 
 
BOCC-Channell asked if Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) is contemplating a speed limit change coming 
around the curves; Applicant representative Langenfeld was not aware of any speed limit changes. City of Gunnison 
Manager Coleman added CDOT will not address speed limits until development occurs.   
 
BOCC-Channell asked about the berm and the top soil stripped when mining; Applicant representative Langenfeld said 
the top soil will be used in the berms and reclamation.    
 
BOCC-Channell asked how the trees suggested by Bratton would be handled at Sketch Plan; Reed said the view shed 
has been a big part of the discussions, but it is more of a concept at this point.  The Preliminary Plan will be more specific 
in dealing with landscaping.   
 
BOCC- Channel asked if the dewatering material is placed in pits; Applicant representative Langenfeld said pumps are 
used to drain and put it in the pond to separate the sediment out and then discharge the clean water.  
 
BOCC-Chamberland asked if the existing access in Signal Peak could be used as an access; Applicant representative 
Langenfeld said the CDOT traffic engineer verified their proposed access the applicants will not exceed the traffic limit.  
The applicants would have to buy an easement from two property owners; and the Signal Peak access is not a safe 
access point. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Bob Delahay commented he did not receive notification.  The posting on the highway was insufficient.  He lives across the 
highway where the trucks will come in, it will be his driveway; poor choice.  His home and three others sit above the 
proposed site; they will be extremely visually impacted.  His house is for sale, he does not need the impacts a gravel pit 
will bring.  He suggested moving it to Bratton’s front yard.  The access through Signal Peak is already dangerous adding 
more traffic to th3 access is not wise.  He added he does not want it in his driveway either.   
 
Aaron MacLennan agreed there is no way to hide this site from his front window.  He has worked in mining, the 
processing of the materials can make it cost prohibitive.  He said costs have gone up on everything; the competition was 







 
 


 12 November 02 PC Minutes 
 Page 6 


                                                             Date of Approval 


  


not the only reason for price increases it is also the economy.  The berms and trees will not help his view shed.   He said 
the pit would be too close to the Highway, and too close to his house.  He might have difficulty selling his home with a pit 
there.    
 
Linda Goldman asked if the land is currently agricultural land; she asked if we need more industrial land.    Reed it is a 
good question; BOCC may want to address the issue.  BOCC-Chamberland added there is a need to identify a place to 
approve industry.   
 
Sally Hays said she lives at top of the hill, mostly above the inversion.  She expressed her concern with the particulate 
matter produced by a gravel operation.   
 
Mary Kay Fry was concerned with the decrease in property values surrounding the pit, the destruction of the wildlife 
habitat, and the beautiful hay meadow will be replaced by a gravel pit.   
 
Applicant Response 
 
Applicant representative Bratton reiterated his concern with the aesthetics- next to industrial park; when finished it could 
look better.   He said he would work to improve the potential impacts.  
 
Chairman Reed said he was trying to understand how this will look and the ramifications of the time frame being much 
longer. Applicant representative Langenfeld explained it is a snapshot as opposed to a comprehensive view because of 
the variability it is not predictable.     
 
Applicant representative Bratton said it could be beneficial to have the pit last longer, and then the mitigation has already 
been done and there would not be a need for additional disruption. Chairman Reed said reclamation is also a component; 
trying to plan for something that far in the future is difficult, he is trying to understand the reality of it.   
 
Commissioner Cattles suggested reclaiming as you go; lakes could be built as you go and not have a 30 year hole.  
 Applicant representative Langenfeld agreed it could be done in any number of ways, but the processing equipment will 
still sit there.  The hole in the ground impacts could be minimized by smaller lakes as you go rather than waiting 30 years.   
Applicant representative Bratton agreed to look into it.  
 
Chairman Reed closed the public hearing at 2:30 P.M., leaving the record open of two weeks for additional written 
comment.  An additional work session will be conducted.   
 


**** 
Nichols- Riverland Industrial Park # 1- Lot 4: The Gunnison County Planning Commission (Commission) conducted a 
public hearing, to review a request for a concrete batch plant and storage yard for heavy equipment, located on Lot 4, 
Riverland Industrial Park, F #1, south of the Town of Crested Butte, west of Highway 135.  
 
With a quorum present Chairman Ramon Reed opened the public hearing. 
 
Community Development Services Manager Beth Baker confirmed the applicant had provided the certified mailing 
receipts and proof of posting; the planning department had the public notice published in the Gunnison Country Times and 
the Crested Butte News. 
 
Assistant Director of Community Development Neal Starkebaum 
 
John Nichols and Dena Hildreth were present to discuss the application.   
 
Commissioners Wilcox and Eskew were not present for the discussion.   
 
Applicant Nichols explained the location of the site.  They have poured a 32 ft. concrete wall, and there is a 27 ft. tall silo.  
The Riverland Board has reviewed the proposal, they have required extensive landscaping.  The site is 30 ft lower than 
the highway.  There is a 60 ft. berm along Highway 135.  The site is minimally visible from the highway.   
 







 
 


 12 November 02 PC Minutes 
 Page 7 


                                                             Date of Approval 


  


Nichols said there will be no building constructed because the Crested Butte Fire Protection District requires an expensive 
fire suppression system in a structure. 
 
Staff 
 
Assistant Director of Community Development Neal Starkebaum had no comments.  
 
Planning Commission 
 
Chairman Reed asked what the purpose of the silo is; Nichols explained it holds cement powder.  It is filled pneumatically 
with an air processor.  
 
Public Comment 
 
John Rozman said when the land was acquired from John Rozman, it was understood it would be for a leach field and 
sewer system, but it was not put in writing.   
 
Neighbor across the street Bill Lacy asked if the berm was complete; Nichols said yes, Lacy disagreed.  Nichols said his 
portion is finished, Riverland’s is not.  Nichols said there will be some visual block behind the trees. 
 
Lacy noted in 2010 when the land exchange between Rozman and Nichols was approved he had been informed a 
building would be placed on site, and that structure would shield Lacy’s view.  Lacy agreed to the land exchange based on 
the information.  He said he would have opposed the land exchange if he had known there would be a batch plant.    
 
Nichols said Rozman owns the exiting gravel pit. Lacy said he knew there would be a batch plant on Rozman’s site, but 
he was not approving two batch plants.  Lacy is opposed to Nichol’s silo; it was never approved.  He noted the silo on the 
Rozman site is bermed and cannot be seen from Lacy’s property.    
 
Attorney representing Bill Lacy Kendal Burgemeister submitted a letter to the Commission.  He said the proper County 
process is not being followed.  He added Riverland does not allow outdoor storage.  He said the proposed project is 
contrary to Riverland’s covenants.  Outside storage was prohibited in 1982 because it is an eyesore.   Granting a variance 
from the subdivision was not mentioned in the draft decision, prepared by staff.  He suggested the application be reviewed 
in the full context of Gunnison County Land Use Resolution (LUR); review as a complete minor project if not major.  
Chairman Reed said in general the Commission reviews applications in Riverland as Minor Impact projects.  Assistant 
Director of Community Development Neal Starkebaum noted authority was delegated to the Commission in the 2001 
LUR.  He added Riverland has given their approval.  Chairman Reed said the Commission is the decision making body in 
this the process, but it also includes an appeal option to the BOCC by the applicant or anyone in opposition.   
 
Commissioner Eskew returned to the meeting at 3:00 P.M. 
 
Attorney representing Bill Lacy Burgemeister said the Commission should look at this application as a full review not a 
partially exempt review.    Reed said that is noted.  Burgemeister said landscaping and buffers are generally considered in 
a full review and need to be done here because they affect the adjacent landowners.  Lacy said Nichols equipment can be 
seen from the highway; the impacts from this site should be protected from the view corridor.  The original plan and 
building were very different than what is being considered now.  The proposed building would have shielded all the visual 
impacts.   
 
Assistant Director of Community Development Starkebaum said the draft decision does include reference to the approval 
given by Riverland.   
 
Applicant’s Response  
 
Nichols clarified the Riverland covenants do allow for a batch plant; the variance is a request for outdoor storage.  
Riverland as Industrial park was built in three phases.  The POA allows outdoor storage through a majority vote of the 
landowners.  The POA allows outdoor storage on a case by case basis.  They have granted outdoor storage and have 
done a good job of shielding it from Highway 135. 







 
 


 12 November 02 PC Minutes 
 Page 8 


                                                             Date of Approval 


  


 
Chairman Reed asked what outdoor storage exists now.  Nichols said there are large trucks but they have current tags on 
them.   
 
Lacy said the silo is storing the cement powder; the silo should be in a building according to the covenants.  Chairman 
Reed was not sure if that would qualify for outdoor storage.  Commissioner Seitz said the cement is already in a 
container.  Commissioner Eskew asked if it is portable; Nichols said it does not have an axel; not designed to be portable.  
Assistant Director of Community Development Starkebaum noted this is an approved use by the County as an industrial 
park within the covenants- a silo would be a part of a batching operation.  Lacy agreed batch plants are in the covenants; 
but the surrounding owners were not told this would be a batch plant when they agreed to the Rozman/ Nichols land 
exchange. 
 
The Commission did not take action at this meeting because of the information received at the meeting.  Chairman Reed 
requested staff look more specifically at the conditions concerning outside storage and discuss it with the applicant to 
make it specific and clear.    
 
Chairman Reed stated it is not in the Commission’s purview to decide what is and is not outside storage or enforce it. 
Attorney representing Bill LacyBurgemeister said in this instance the default rule- no outside storage on this lot should 
prevail; the County has the authority and duty to examine what should or should not be allowed as outside storage.  
 
Chairman Reed closed the public hearing @ 3:15 P.M. 
 
Commissioner Wilcox returned to the meeting at 3:15 P.M. 


**** 
Watclarenone, Tim Watson, Majestic Mesa Monastery; The Gunnison County Planning Commission (Commission) 
conducted a work session/no action, request for a seasonal, mediation lodge, legally described as being located in  TR 
102 (E2NE4 & E2SE4) SEC 12,13 & TR 103 (W2NE4) SEC 12 48N5W 238.59 ACRES, 9380 Highway 50, approximately 
35 miles west of the City of Gunnison.  
 
With a quorum present Chairman Ramon Reed opened the work session.   
 
Applicants’ representative Danny Watson was present to discuss the project.   
 
Applicants’ representative Watson explained the applicants have owned the property for 34 years.  They have built a 
cabin, and skied up for meditation. This year it was discovered there had been no building permit obtained to build the 
cabin.  They are in the process of remedying the building permit and septic permit issues.   
 
Applicants’ representative Watson said they would be using the cabin for a mediation lodge, for guests.  They would 
shuttle guests to the gate on Highway 50 and the guests will ski in 2.5 miles to the cabin.  The guests will mediate from 6 
A.M. to 9 P.M. each day.  The maximum number of guests at one time would be 15.  There is no electricity, there is a well, 
and they run a generator.  
 
Chairman Reed pointed out a potential problem with the access. The Russell family owns the adjacent property on which 
the access is located.  The Russell’s have historically allowed the owners of the property to access their cabin over the 
Russell property.  Giles Russell noted the road is not a County road, it is a private road.   The Russells are concerned with 
the potential commercial use of this property.  They are not comfortable with the potential liability. 
 
Assistant Director of Community Development Neal Starkebaum has been contacted by Giles Russell, who has submitted 
a letter outlining the current use of the road.  The Russells are concerned with the commercial use of the property 
resulting in the public using their private access road.  They are also not going to allow any parking of vehicles near the 
highway, on the Russell’s property.    
 
Russell said they do not want the public skiing through their property.  He acknowledged the owners do have permission 
to use the road to access the cabin.  They will not be permitting the applicants to have a parking lot just inside the gate.  
He reiterated the public will not be allowed, if there is a commercial use of the cabin.   
 







 
 


 12 November 02 PC Minutes 
 Page 9 


                                                             Date of Approval 


  


Assistant Director of Community Development Starkebaum noted the Gunnison County Land Use Resolution (LUR) 
standards state legal access shall be provided, and made of record. He said there are also outstanding issues with the 
lack of a building permit and ISDS permit.   
 
Chairman Reed said a site visit should be done as soon as possible, because of weather concerns.  
 
Commissioner Wilcox encouraged the applicants and the Russells to work together toward an agreement.   
 
Assistant Director of Community Development Starkebaum pointed out the emergency access vehicle would most likely 
be a snowmobile.  Indemnification may be needed because of the commercial component.   
 
 
Assistant Director of Community Development Starkebaum will speak to the County Attorney concerning the access 
easement issue.   


**** 
 
Reed adjourned the meeting at   4:40  
 
________________ 
/S/ Beth Baker 
Community Development Department Services Manager 
Gunnison County Community Development Department 
 
 
 
 
 








 12 October 19  PC Meeting Minutes 
 Page 1 


                                                             Date of Approval 


  


 
GUNNISON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 


PRELIMINARY AGENDA: Friday, October 19, 2012 
 


Draft Minutes 
 


8:45 a.m. • Call to order; determine quorum 
• Approval of Minutes 
• Unscheduled citizens: A brief period in which the public is invited to make general comments or 


ask questions of the Commission or Planning Staff about items which are not scheduled on the day’s 
agenda. 


  
9:00 a.m.  SG Interests I, Ltd., continued public hearing/no action, request for the Federal 11-90-9 gas well project, 


including five gas wells, located in northwest Gunnison County, in Section 9, Township 11 South, Range 
90 West, 6th P.M., west of Highway 133 


  
9:15 a.m. SG Interests I, Ltd., work session/possible action, request for the Sperry/Clinger 11-90-1 gas well 


project, including five gas wells, located in northwest Gunnison County, legally described as HES 68 in 
Sections 11, 12 and HES 137 & lots 5, 6, 7 in Section 11, all in Township 11 South, Range 90 West, 6th 
P.M., west of Highway 133 


  
10:00 a.m. Gunnison Valley Properties, LLC, work session/no action, Sketch Plan, request for a year-round sand 


and gravel operation on 109-acres of a 220-acre parcel; 62-acres of which will be excavated. The 
operation will include the extraction, crushing, screening, washing and stockpiling of approximately 
200,000 tons of sand and gravel per year.  Asphalt and concrete batching is also proposed to be 
conducted at the facility.  The property is located approximately ½ mile east of the City of Gunnison, 
south of Highway 50 to Tomichi Creek, legally described as a being located in the NE/4 SE/4 NW/4 
Section 4 and the NE/4NE/4 Section 5, Township 49 North, Range 1 East, N.M.P.M., 43188 Highway 50 


  
  
  


Adjourn  
  
  
  
  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 12 October 19  PC Meeting Minutes 
 Page 2 


                                                             Date of Approval 


  


 
 
 


GUNNISON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Regular Meeting 
October 19, 2012 


*** 
The Gunnison County Planning Commission conducted a regular meeting, in the Commissioners’ Meeting Room in the 
Blackstocks Government Center, Planning Commission meeting room.  Present were: 
 
Chairman- Ramon Reed   Assistant Director of Community Development- Neal Starkebaum 
Vice- Chairman-Jim Seitz   Community Development Department Services Manager-Beth Baker  
Commissioner-Susan Eskew     
Commissioner-Warren Wilcox    
Commissioner-Kent Fulton     
Alternate Commissioner- Jeremy Rubingh 
Alternate Commissioner- A. J. Cattles 
 
      Others present as listed in text 


**** 
With a quorum present Chairman Ramon Reed opened the regular meeting of the Commission. 
 


**** 
MOVED; by Commissioner Seitz seconded by Commissioner Wilcox to approve the minutes of September 7, 2012 as 
amended.  The motion passed unanimously.   
MOVED; by Commissioner Wilcox seconded by Commmissioner Fulton to approve the minutes of September 21, 2012 as 
amended.  The motion passed unanimously.   


**** 
 
SG INTERESTS/ FEDERAL 11-90-9; The Gunnison County Planning Commission (Commission) conducted a continued 
public hearing.  They reviewed the request for the Federal 11-90-9 gas well project, including five gas wells, located in 
northwest Gunnison County, in Section 9, Township 11 South, Range 90 West, 6th P.M., west of Highway 133.   
 
Chairman Ramon Reed has recused himself from this review.   
 
SG Interests (SG) representative Eric Sanford was present to discuss the application; SG Interests (SG) representative 
Catherine Dickert participated by phone.   
 
With a quorum present Vice-Chairman Jim Sietz opened the Commission’s continued public hearing.   
 
Assistant Director of Community Development Neal Starkebaum said Forest Service representative Ryan Taylor informed 
him the Categorical Exclusion (CE) will not be acted upon until late November.   SG representative Sanford said he had 
also spoken to Ryan Taylor and had been told it could be mid November.  He added SG had filed a motion to dismiss and 
the hearing will be conducted October 24, 2012, in Denver.  
 
Starkebaum recommended continuing the Public Hearing.   
 
The public hearing was continued December 7, 2012, at 9:00 A.M.   


**** 
SG INTERESTS/ SPERRY-CLINGER 11-90-1; The Gunnison County Planning Commission (Commission) conducted a 
work session, to discuss the request for the Sperry/Clinger 11-90-1 gas well project, including five gas wells, located in 
northwest Gunnison County, legally described as HES 68 in Sections 11, 12 and HES 137 & lots 5, 6, 7 in Section 11, all 
in Township 11 South, Range 90 West, 6th P.M., west of Highway 133.  
 
SG Interests (SG) representative Eric Sanford was present to discuss the application; SG Interests (SG) representative 
Catherine Dickert participated by phone.   
 
With a quorum present Chairman Ramon Reed opened the Commission’s work session.   
 
Chairman Reed noted the public hearing had been conducted; prior to this work session, and the public hearing had been 
closed.  The Commission is now in the deliberation and the discussion phase of the proceedings. 







 12 October 19  PC Meeting Minutes 
 Page 3 


                                                             Date of Approval 


  


 
Commissioner Rubingh said he had missed the public hearing. He added there seems to be some disagreement on how 
the water flows; if it actually flows towards the water body or not. Chairman Reed acknowledged there had been 
discussions both ways; he recommended going through the draft recommendation and reviewing it at that time.  
 
Commissioner Seitz commented in a prior Commission meeting he had misspoken.  He thought several prior Commission 
decisions had been based upon a land owner’s request regarding the location of the well. He has since then reviewed 
some of the applications and has concluded he had been confused.  He does contend the landowner’s wishes have been 
considered, but he acknowledged the Commission’s decisions were not based upon the landowner’s request for the 
location of the pads.   
 
The Commission reviewed the draft decision of approval.  The Commission had directed staff to prepare the draft 
approval Decision document at the September 21, 2012 Planning Commission meeting, by motion and on a vote of 3-2.   
 
MOVED; by Commissioner Fulton seconded by Commissioner Wilcox to approve OG-12-00009 as amended. – (No vote 
was taken following the first and second to approve OG-12-0009 as amended.  
 
MOVED; by Chairman Reed and seconded by Commissioner Eskew to review an amendment, written by Reed, which 
reverses the original intent and changes the motion to a denial. 
     
Chairman Reed noted he had deleted some language and he added some of his own language.  He was concerned the 
Gunnison County Oil and Gas regulations were not being followed.  He pointed out the requirements for a Technical 
Infeasibility waiver could not be met with this application.  He said the Commission is required to follow the County Oil and 
Gas regulations.  He clarified the 500 ft. setback requirement has not been met.  He added the draft approval says two 
contradictory things; either the setback is met or it is not met, and a Technical Infeasibility waiver is needed.  He said the 
draft approval says both.  He clarified he had no changes to the draft approval prior to the findings in the draft approval.  
He said he recommends several changes starting with number two in the findings.  Assistant Director of Community 
Development Neal Starkebaum said in the past when the Commission has reviewed the location of a well pad as an 
element of an oil and gas operation which is hydro-logically separated and applicability of the finding, however the road 
and the pipelines do not share that same element, so they would qualify for a Technical Infeasibility waiver for those 
elements of the operation.    
 
Chairman Reed pointed out just because the land owner wants the pad located in this area, it does not qualify for a 
Technical Infeasibility waiver. 
 
Chairman Reed said in a previous Commission meeting he had suggested locating the pad on the opposite side of the 
creek. SG Interests (SG) representative Sanford had said they could not reach the intended well pad site from the area 
that had been suggested by Reed.  Reed said he felt SG could reach the pad, because of the availability of advanced 
technology; the wells can be drilled at an angle, at an angle and deviate, and drill vertically or horizontally. He asked 
where the engineering is to prove this pad cannot be located outside the water body setbacks.    
 
Chairman Reed said there was no evidence on the Commission record, either written and oral, proving there was no other 
feasible location for this well pad; only that the land owner does not want it anywhere else.   
 
Commissioner Rubingh requested the Commission talk with the County Attorney to clarify and get instructions concerning 
the possibility of a Technical Infeasibility wavier granted for this application, based upon only the owner’s desired location. 
Rubingh was not convinced there is evidence to warrant granting a Technical Infeasibility waiver. Although, he said 
Reed’s proposed amended may be going too far; there are technical aspects of drilling which need clarification.  
 
Chairman Reed said it is a legal question which could be discussed with the County Attorney.  He reiterated it is the job of 
the Commission to work with the evidence presented, if the evidence does not meet the standard, the Commission does 
not have any choice but to deny the request.  
 
Commissioner Fulton said it is has been his assumption the applicants are using the best technology/ engineering 
available to them.  He added the applicants had used engineering and technology to determine the requested pad 
location.  Commissioner Fulton said there have been talks concerning this location.  He remembered SG Interests (SG) 
representative Sanford had said the reason, above and beyond the owners request for location, included the large area it 
takes to make turns below the surface in order to get to the location.  Commissioner Fulton said from a site visit viewpoint, 
if the pad site was moved in any direction you are actually, potentially, placing the pad site closer to Spring Creek. He 
added it would be potentially more likely to have water runoff down towards Spring Creek.  He pointed out moving the pad 
location could possibly be detrimental. 







 12 October 19  PC Meeting Minutes 
 Page 4 


                                                             Date of Approval 


  


 
 
   
 
Chairman Reed said there are approximately 400 acres to the North West of this location which are in this mineral lease.  
The Commission was not given any evidence one way, or the other, that there are or aren’t any more suitable well pad 
locations.  Reed said, “This is one small corner of the mineral lease, if getting to the entire thing is a problem why isn’t it 
up in the middle of the mineral lease.”  The evidence was not presented that this is the only location.   
 
Commissioner Fulton said there had been discussions concerning why this site is not proposed on the other side of the 
creek.  Reed said the answers where that moving the pad would have the pad in the land owners prime hay meadow.   
 
Commissioner Wilcox recalled in order to make the turn to be in the production zone of the lease, it would make a 
difference to the owner of the site of the pad whether he was paid not just for the site, but also for the production, because 
part of that well would be in the production zone.  Chairman Reed asked how that was relevant to the Gunnison County 
Oil and Gas regulations.  
 
Assistant Director of Community Development Neal Starkebaum pointed out within the context of the infeasibility waiver 
language; granting a waiver states it will not cause substantial injury to the owner or occupant of the adjacent lands. The 
waiver will not cause substantial injury to the environment.  He said part of the testimony which had been presented had 
to do with the location of the well pad being where it is located because the closest distance to the existing collection 
system as well as the existing access is on the Falcon Seaboard property which is to the south, and on the east side of 
the Spring Creek drainage. It would eliminate any additional substantial Injury to the environment by having to place the 
well pad on the Sperry property which is to the west and you would have to cross Spring Creek.  
 
Chairman Reed said there is no evidence any other location would have to cross anything, or that it would be 
environmentally worse.   Assistant Director Starkebaum said because this is the closest location; that in itself minimizes 
the amount of disturbance needed to connect. On the Sperry property this corner is the only location on the east side of 
Spring Creek.  Reed did not see the relevance of east side or west side of Spring Creek.  Starkebaum noted it has to do 
with the nearest distance to the closest water and gas collection system.  Reed said it is only the distance, and it is a big 
assumption the shortest distance is always the least damaging.  Starkebaum said Sperry is the surface owner; the only 
other portion of the property is on the west side of the drainage.  Reed again did not see it was relevant.     
    
Commissioner Rubingh said the Commission is not being asked to look at where SG should site their well pad.  We are 
being asked to look at this particular application; he is not convinced there should be a Technical Infeasibility waiver, but 
he also was not comfortable with Chairman Reed’s proposed amendment.  He would feel more comfortable getting more 
information on this particular site. He would like to meet with the County Attorney to discuss the Technical Infeasibility 
based upon what we have in public testimony.  He would like to take the time and not rush through this issue either way.  
 
Chairman Reed said there is always the opportunity for other Commission members to table or postpone motions.   
Commissioner Seitz recalled a comment made by SG Interests (SG) representative Sanford; Sanford would have 
preferred the Commission would have had walked on the other side of the drainage, to illustrate why this is an appropriate 
location, because everything to the west side of Spring Creek drained into Spring Creek, and could cause more problems 
than the site which was specified. Reed said the Commission’s job is to deal with what is on the record, and it is not time 
to introduce new evidence.  Seitz said it is on the record as comments on the site visit.  Reed said the record will not be 
opened for new evidence.  Seitz noted his site visit comments are that the drainage is from the south east and away from 
the drainage.   
 
Assistant Director Starkebaum said all the points under number nine of the draft decision document, from the direction of 
the Commission, were from the testimony at the public hearing. Chairman Reed said he did not take out things that were 
in testimony.  Starkebaum disagreed; Reed noted there is nothing stating the well pad location and Spring Creek drainage 
are hydro-logically separated.  Starkebaum disagreed noting as part of the discussion at the public hearing, the members 
of the Commission directed staff to prepare a draft decision of approval.  It had been noted there was a topographic relief 
at the edge of where the pad site was located and Spring Creek drainage, and the contour lines show the general 
direction the drainage is away from Spring Creek. 
 
Commissioner Eskew said she had difficulty discerning the direction of the flow.  Chairman Reed agreed noting without 
evidence one way or the other; each commissioner will have to make up their own mind.   
   
Chairman Reed said there was no evidence to justify what is being asked for.   
 







 12 October 19  PC Meeting Minutes 
 Page 5 


                                                             Date of Approval 


  


MOVED; by Commissioner Fulton to have an executive session with the County Attorney to discuss the legality of what 
goes into this.  Chairman Reed clarified the motion is out of order because of the motion which is currently on the floor, 
but there could be a motion to table the motion so we can have a discussion with the County Attorney on the legal issues. 
 
MOVED; by Commissioner Fulton and seconded by Commissioner  Eskew to table the motion that is on the floor, pending 
an executive session with the County Attorney on legal issues.  The motion carried unanimously.   


**** 
GUNNISON VALLEY PROPERTIES/ TOMICHI GRAVEL PIT; The Gunnison County Planning Commission 
(Commission) conducted a work session, to discuss the request for a year-round sand and gravel operation on 109-acres 
of a 220-acre parcel; 62-acres of which will be excavated. The operation will include the extraction, crushing, screening, 
washing and stockpiling of approximately 200,000 tons of sand and gravel per year.  Asphalt and concrete batching is 
also proposed to be conducted at the facility.  The property is located approximately ½ mile east of the City of Gunnison, 
south of Highway 50 to Tomichi Creek, legally described as a being located in the NE/4 SE/4 NW/4 Section 4 and the 
NE/4NE/4 Section 5, Township 49 North, Range 1 East, N.M.P.M., 43188 Highway 50.   
 
Commissioner Wilcox has recused himself from this review.     
 
With a quorum present Chairman Ramon Reed opened the Commission’s work session.   
 
Consulting Engineer with Greg Lewicki and Associates Ben Langenfeld was present to represent Gunnison Valley 
Properties.   
 
Chairman Reed explained the work session was being conducted to bring up questions or issues of the Commission.   
 
Chairman Reed noted there had been additional information submitted by the applicant; an amendment to the original 
plan.  
 
Engineer Langenfeld said there were concerns expressed about the processing plant being placed close to Highway 50.  
The concerns were primarily about the visual impacts; they have now submitted an alternative plan.  The bulk of the pit 
plan has not changed. The processing equipment has been moved to the south east corner of the site and they will 
construct a 30 ft berm, for visibility mitigation.  The plant will remain in the south east corner through phases one and two; 
the operator then has the option to move it at the end of mine life.  Changing the location of the processing equipment will 
result in less required dewatering year round.  They will be able to stop pumping water and do not have to deal with the 
potential impacts of winter dewatering.  
 
Chairman Reed asked if the sale of the material would be at the northern end of the site; Langenfeld said it would.  Reed 
asked what the access point would be; Langenfeld said they will have a road where the pit crest goes down to the 
processing area.  He added different operators could change and they want to leave the access options open to 
operators.  It will most likely run along the edge because of the convenience.    
 
Commissioner Rubingh agreed moving the processing away from Highway 50 addresses visibility, but he pointed out now 
it is right next to a State wildlife area.  He asked what the hours of operation would be; Langenfeld said the hours would 
be from 6 A.M. to 7 P.M.  .   
 
Chairman Reed asked about the ground water, because this will be a very large and deep pit.  He noted there are several 
domestic water wells that are less than 50 ft. from the pit.  He asked about the potential to change the water table for the 
domestic wells. Engineer Langenfeld said due to the strong water flows and because the pit is downstream, it will not 
negatively affect the adjacent wells.  The State requires a demonstration when applying for a gravel pit- well permit.  The 
State requires checking wells within 600ft. 
  
Chairman Reed noted because this will be such a large operation the applicant will need to provide some information 
concerning the potential impacts to the surrounding properties from this operation.  He added the Commission needs to 
be comfortable this operation would not dewater the surrounding areas.  Langenfeld agreed to provide information on a 
conceptual level.     
 
Chairman Reed submitted an article from the Gunnison County Times from July, 2012.  The article discussed the fishery 
on Tomichi Creek, the low water levels and the temperature of the water going up.  He asked if the water from the pit 
would increase the temperature of the water in Tomichi Creek, and if it has been considered.   Langenfeld said because 
they will be discharging when the water flow is high the water will become closer to the stream temperature, but maybe 
not the same.   
 







 12 October 19  PC Meeting Minutes 
 Page 6 


                                                             Date of Approval 


  


Commissioner Rubingh suggested because of the new siting of the processing area it would be advantageous to seek 
comments from Colorado Parks and Wildlife.    He said Trout Unlimited could also be a good resource of information. 
 
Commissioner Fulton expressed his concern with the possibility of the water in the Tomichi Creek becoming warmer 
because of the water from the pit.  He asked if this is truly a concern, how it could be addressed.    
 
Commissioner Cattles expressed his concern with the potential negative visual impacts to the entry corridor to the City. 
He noted even the proposed 30 ft. visual mitigation berm could cause visual impacts.  He suggested looking at a different 
location on the parcel which would be less detrimental to the view corridor.  Langenfeld said the location is driven by the 
land owner.  He said in the beginning of the operation the visibility will be much less, but as the pit grows it will get closer 
to Highway 50, and visual impacts will have to be mitigated with a berm that will move with the pit. Cattles reiterated his 
concern with the visual impacts of a very large mining hole.  Commissioner Fulton agreed and added the entire County 
will be impacted by those visual impacts.    
 
Chairman Reed said although a landscaping plan is not required at sketch plan review, more details are needed 
concerning the proposed 30 ft. berm.   Commissioner Fulton agreed noting this could have a large visual impact on the 
entire County.  The permanent berm can be landscaped well, but a moving berm is a practical problem.  Commissioner 
Seitz added the permanent berm will only mitigate visual impacts from the north.  The west and east are not shielded.  
Visual impacts are a primary concern.   Langenfeld said berming the east and west sides would result in too limited of an 
area to work in.   
 
Commissioner Eskew pointed out there has been no need for extra mining material recently. Langenfeld said the 
applicant does not think the economics of the issue should be addressed.  In terms of operations like this; there is always 
a need for competition.  Chairman Reed disagreed noting if the demand is not present for the material from the pit, than 
the life of the pit is greatly extended.  He did agree competition in the market place was beneficial.   He added 
understanding the volumes of material needed historically could help the Commission with their determination.   
 
Engineer Langenfeld said the traffic generated from the pit will flow through Gunnison; they have attempted to mitigate the 
impacts as much as possible.   
 
Chairman Reed stated the City’s Three Mile Plan and the Intergovernmental Government Agreement (IGA) should be 
considered in this review, as noted in the Gunnison County Land Use Resolution (LUR). He noted it will have to be 
addressed in the Preliminary Plan.   
 
Assistant Director of Community Development Neal Starkebaum will provide copies of the IGA and the relevant sections 
of the City’s Three Mile Plan to the Commission.  
 
Engineer Langenfeld said they have amended their application to delete the section referring to this area eventually 
becoming a public recreational area.  They do not know what the reclaimed area will be in 20 yrs., at this time.   
 
Chairman Reed referred to the Vista Business Park application and the communication from County legal counsel 
regarding City retail sales tax.   
 
Chairman Reed wanted the applicant to clarify the Phases referred to in the application, were not phases within the LUR 
regulations; Engineer Langenfeld confirmed they were not. He explained they are not proposing the application as a multi 
phased project, it is a total project.   
 
Chairman Reed asked about water rights; Engineer Langenfeld said augmentation plans have been filed, and in progress 
with the State Water Court.    
 
Chairman Reed asked for explanation of the traffic study. Engineer Langenfeld explained the ratio used to measure the 
traffic going east and west came under the CDOT requirements for an acceleration or deceleration lane.  CDOT has now 
approved the applicant’s request.    
 
The Commission requested information; 


• Ground water 
• Tomichi Creek fishery 
• Visual impacts and reclamation 
• Three Mile Plan and IGA 
• Water rights 
• Market and time lines 







 12 October 19  PC Meeting Minutes 
 Page 7 


                                                             Date of Approval 


  


• Traffic 
• CPAW and the new proposal/ Tomichi Creek fishery 


 
**** 


 
Reed adjourned the meeting at   11:40 A.M.  


 
________________ 
/S/ Beth Baker 
Community Development Department Services Manager 
Gunnison County Community Development Department 
 
 
 
 
 








GUNNISON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
PRELIMINARY AGENDA: Friday, November 16, 2012 


 
8:45 a.m. • Call to order; determine quorum 


• Approval of Minutes 
• Unscheduled citizens: A brief period in which the public is invited to make general 


comments or ask questions of the Commission or Planning Staff about items which are not 
scheduled on the day’s agenda. 


  
9:00 a.m.  SG Interests I, Ltd., executive session/work session/possible action, request for the 


Sperry/Clinger 11-90-1 gas well project, including five gas wells, located in northwest Gunnison 
County, legally described as HES 68 in Sections 11, 12 and HES 137 & lots 5, 6, 7 in Section 
11, all in Township 11 South, Range 90 West, 6th P.M., west of Highway 133 


  
10:00 a.m. John Nichols, work session/possible action, request for a concrete batch plant and storage 


yard for heavy equipment, located on Lot 4, Riverland Industrial Park, F #1, south of the Town 
of Crested Butte, west of Highway 135 


  
Lunch  


  
1:00 p.m. Leave for Site Visit - Watclarenone, Tim Watson, Majestic Mesa Monastery,  work 


session/no action, request for a seasonal, mediation lodge, legally described as being located 
in  TR 102 (E2NE4 & E2SE4) SEC 12,13 & TR 103 (W2NE4) SEC 12 48N5W 238.59 ACRES, 
9380 Highway 50, approximately 35 miles west of the City of Gunnison 


  
1:45 p.m. Watclarenone, Tim Watson, Majestic Mesa Monastery, site visit/no action, request for a 


seasonal, mediation lodge, legally described as being located in  TR 102 (E2NE4 & E2SE4) 
SEC 12,13 & TR 103 (W2NE4) SEC 12 48N5W 238.59 ACRES, 9380 Highway 50, 
approximately 35 miles west of the City of Gunnison.  Will meet at the gate on Highway 50, 
near Milepost 126 


  
  


Adjourn  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTE: Unless otherwise noted, all meetings are conducted in the Blackstock Government Center Meeting Room at 221 N. Wisconsin 
St. in Gunnison, across the street from the Post Office.  This is a preliminary agenda; agenda times may be changed by the staff up to 
24 hours before the meeting date. If you are interested in a specific agenda item; you may want to call the Community Development 
Department (641-0360) ahead of time to confirm its scheduled time. Anyone needing special accommodations please contact the 
Community Development Department before the meeting. 
 








Lot 4, Riverland Industrial Park F#1 – PC Decision 


TO: Planning Commission 


 


SUBJECT: Minor Impact Decision 


John Nichols 


   LUC #2007-02 


Lot  4, Riverland Industrial Park Filing No. 1 


 


PREPARED BY: Neal Starkebaum, Assistant Planning Director 


 


DATE:   Planning Commission Meeting, February 15, 2008 


 


APPLICANT:  John Nichols 


   P.O. Box 2972 


   Crested Butte, CO  81224 


 


 
At its regular meeting of February 15, 2008, the Planning Commission unanimously approved the 
following Minor Impact Decision, as amended, moved by Ramon Reed and seconded by Richard 
Karas: 


 


PROJECT DESCRIPTION:   
John Nichols has submitted a land use application for the construction of a 16,000 square foot 
commercial/industrial structure on Lot 4, Riverland Industrial Park, F#1.  Initial tenants will include 
an auto repair shop, a cabinet shop and an excavation company.  The lower level will have 8000 
square feet, in three work bays; two - 2500 square foot shop spaces and one 3000 square foot 
shop space.  The upper level, 8000 square feet, will have multiple tenant spaces. The building will 
be excavated into the site, with the upper level (from grade) being approximately 23 feet in height 
to the highest point on the roof.  An 8’ berm will be constructed, with landscaping to screen the 
building from Highway 135.  This, as shown on a site plan, titled “Replat of  Riverland Lot 4”, 
prepared by Meridian Design, submitted with the application, and architectural elevation renderings 
prepared by Todd Carroll Design, dated 10/25/2006. 
 


LOCATION:  
Lot 4, Riverland Industrial Park, Filing No. 1; located south of the Town of Crested Butte, west of 
Highway 135. 
 


WATER:      
The uses will be served by the Riverland Industrial Park central water system. 


 


WASTEWATER:  
Wastewater from the development is proposed to be treated by an individual sewage disposal 
system, subject to compliance with the Gunnison County Individual Sewage Disposal System 
Regulations.   In a memo from Richard Stenson, Environmental Health Official, February 8, 2008, 
he notes: 
 


“During the review I found that it would be feasible to develop ISDS on the lot with the 
understanding that: 


 
1. An engineered ISDS, including pretreatment for non-domestic wastewater will be 


designed; 







Lot 4, Riverland Industrial Park – PC Decision 


 


2  


2. Performance criteria and construction standards, applicable to Part 15 of the Gunnison 


County Individual Sewage Disposal Regulations, for the system will need to be a 
part of the design review;   


3. This septic system is required to meet the approval of the EPA Underground Injection 


Control (UIC) Program (40 CFR Part 144) and is considered as a Class V injection 


well.       
 


It is also noted that the public water system for the subdivision in currently under a 


Compliance Advisory according to the Safe Drinking Water Act as regulated by the 
Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment. My office requests that the 
Compliance Advisory be lifted prior to the issuance of any County permits.”     


    
An individual sewage disposal system permit application has been submitted and will include further 
review and assessment of the site for the type and design of ISDS to be installed. 
 
Part XV 15-101 of the Gunnison County ISDS Regulations identifies the Requirements for Business, 
Commercial, Industrial Waste Systems, Table 5 Point Source Operations Excluded from County ISDS 
Permits.  The applicant will record a deed restriction on Lot 4 identifying the list of tenant uses 
excluded.  The initial tenant uses are not excluded under this regulation. 
 


ACCESS:   
Roads within Riverland Industrial Park are private.  The applicant has legal access through Riverland 
Industrial Park to Highway 135. 
 
Concerns were voiced at the public hearing by Bill Lacy regarding the safety of the south Riverland 
access.   Comments were received in a letter from Dan Roussin, Region 3 Unit Permit Manager, 
CDOT, dated January 8, 2008, regarding the south access point for Riverland Industrial Park and 
Highway 135. Access to State Highway 135 is controlled by the Colorado Department of 
Transportation, which has the authority to regulate access onto the State Highway System.   Mr. 
Roussin’s letter states that he south Riverland access lacks a CDOT permit and notes several 
possible means of remediating the situation.  The County has requested that CDOT review the 
overall situation with the south entrance to Riverland and take appropriate action; however, since 
the subject property does have proper and legal access to Highway 135 via the north Riverland 
access, the status of the south Riverland access is not considered in reaching the Commission’s 
decision. 


 


PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION APPROVAL:    
Danny D’Aquilla, President, Riverland Lot Owners’ Association, in a letter dated January 11, 2007, 
states that the Association approves the development plans for Lot 4. 
 


COMPLIANCE WITH COUNTY LAND USE REGULATIONS:  
This land use change application is partially exempted from the requirements of the 2001 Gunnison 
County Land Use Resolution, pursuant to Section 1-106 Partially Exempted Land Use Changes.  
There are no unmitigable conflicts with County land use standards, so long as the structures and 
uses are maintained in compliance with the Declaration of Protective Covenants for Riverland 
Industrial Park and the Gunnison County ISDS Regulations.  


 


COMPLIANCE WITH DIVISION 5-600: COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL USES:  
The proposal complies with all standards within this Division. 
 


RECLAMATION: 
A reclamation permit must be obtained from the Gunnison County Public Works Department for all 







Lot 4, Riverland Industrial Park – PC Decision 


 


3  


newly disturbed areas. 
 


LANDSCAPING:  
Landscaping is required by the Covenants; each lot is required to have a minimum of 15 trees with 
a minimum average height of five feet within 18 months of being issued a building permit.  
Landscaping was previously installed when the building permit was issued.  The applicant indicates 
that he will plant in excess of the required landscaping, as identified on the site plan, prepared by 
Meridian Design, submitted with the application, which shows 42 – 6’ evergreens and 50 -10 to 12’ 
deciduous trees.  The landscaping along Highway 135 will be planted on an 8’ high berm. All 
landscaping will be irrigated. Gunnison County requires a landscaping development improvements 
agreement to ensure installation and survival of the landscaping. 


 


PUBLIC HEARING:   
The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on September 7, 2007.  At that time Bill Lacy 
raised a safety issue with the southern Highway 135 intersection with Buckley Drive.  Sue Oates, 
member of the County Beautification and Scenic Corridors committee asked about the screening of 
the building from Highway 135.  The public hearing was then closed, and the written public 
comment period extended until October 12, 2007. 
 


COMPLIANCE WITH COUNTY LAND USE POLICIES:  
This land use change request is partially exempted from the requirements of the Gunnison County 
Land Use Resolution, pursuant to Section 1-106 Partially Exempted Land Use Changes.  
Compliance to the maximum extent feasible with provisions of Section 1-105: Sections Necessary 
for the Immediate Preservation of Public Health and Safety is required.  There are no unmitigable 
conflicts with County land use standards, so long as the structure is constructed and maintained in 
compliance with the Declaration of Protective Covenants for Riverland Industrial Park and 
Gunnison County ISDS Regulations.  
   


SECTION 11-103: Development in Areas Subject to Flood Hazards. 
The parcel is not located in an area subject to flood hazards. 
 


SECTION 11-104: Development in Areas Subject to Geologic Hazards. 
The parcel is not located in an area subject to geologic hazards. 
 


SECTION 12-107: Protection of Water Quality. 
Not applicable. 
 


SECTION 12-105: Water Supply. 
This use will be served by the Riverland Industrial Park central water system. 
 


SECTION 12-106: Sewage Disposal/Wastewater Treatment. 
Wastewater from the new development is proposed to be treated by an individual sewage disposal 
system, subject to compliance with the Gunnison County Individual Sewage Disposal System 
Regulations.    


 
In comments from Richard Stenson, Environmental Health Official, memo of February 8, 2008, he 
notes: 


“During the review I found that it would be feasible to develop ISDS on the lot with the 
understanding that: 


 
1. an engineered ISDS, including pretreatment for non-domestic wastewater will  


 be designed; 







Lot 4, Riverland Industrial Park – PC Decision 


 


4  


2.  Performance criteria and construction standards, applicable to Part 15 of the 


Gunnison County Individual Sewage Disposal Regulations, for the system will need 
to be a part of the design review;   


3. This septic system is required to meet the approval of the EPA Underground Injection 


Control (UIC) Program (40 CFR Part 144) and is considered as a Class V injection 


well.       
 


It is also noted that the public water system for the subdivision in currently under a 


Compliance Advisory according to the Safe Drinking Water Act as regulated by the 
Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment. My office requests that the 
Compliance Advisory be lifted prior to the issuance of any County permits.”        


 
Part XV 15-101 of the ISDS Regulations identifies the Requirements for Business, Commercial, 
Industrial Waste Systems, Table 5 Point Source Operations Excluded from County ISDS Permits.  
The applicant will record a deed restriction on Lot 4 identifying the list of  tenant uses excluded in 
Part XV.  The initial tenant uses are not excluded under this regulation. 


 


SECTION 12-107: Fire Protection. 
The lot is located within the Crested Butte Fire Protection District.  The District will review the 
building plans at submittal of building permit application.  Staff conversation with Scott Wimmer, 
Fire Inspector, C.B.F.P.D., on September 7, 2007 indicated that he had reviewed the site and had 
no issues with the proposed grade of the driveway. 
 


SECTION 11-209: D: Domestic Animal Controls; and Section 5-206: F.1.b.(6.): Domestic Animal 


Controls. 
Applicable. 
 


SECTION 13-107: Installation of Solid Fuel-Burning Devices. 
Installation of any solid-fuel burning devices shall comply with the current regulations for solid fuel-
burning devices. 
 


SECTION 13-114: Exterior Lighting. 
The applicant submitted a lighting plan, as shown on the architectural renderings, prepared by 
Todd Carroll Design, dated 10/25/2006.  All lighting fixtures are full cut-off.  
 


ADDITIONAL SECTION APPLICABLE TO PARTIALLY EXEMPTED COMMERCIAL, 


INDUSTRIAL OR OTHER NON-RESIDENTIAL LAND USE CHANGES. In addition to complying 
with the requirements listed at 1 through 9, above, new construction of, or expansion to, 
commercial, industrial or other non-residential land use changes that are partially exempted from 
this Resolution by Section 1-106: Partially Exempted Land Use Changes, shall comply to the 
maximum extent feasible with Section 5-303: Road System. 
 


SECTION 12-103: Road System. 
The applicant has legal access to State Highway 135. 


 


FINDINGS: 
The Gunnison County Planning Commission, based on the facts set forth in this Decision and on the 
material facts represented by the applicant, whether or not repeated herein, finds that:  
 
1. The Riverland Lot Owners Association has reviewed and approved of the proposed use, subject 


to their conditions identified in the letter, Danny D’Aquilla, President, Riverland Lot Owners’ 
Association, dated January 11, 1007. 







Lot 4, Riverland Industrial Park – PC Decision 


 


5  


 
2. This land use change permit is in compliance with Section 1-105 Sections Necessary For 


Immediate Preservation Of Public Health And Safety of the new Gunnison County Land Use 
Resolution. 


 
3. Roads within Riverland Industrial Park are private.  Access will be via a driveway from Buckley 


Drive, to Riverland Drive, which connects to State Highway 135, at the northern access into 
Riverland.  The applicant has legal access through Riverland Industrial Park to Highway 135, via 
the northern access intersection onto State Highway 135. Comments were received in a letter of 
from Dan Roussin, Region 3 Unit Permit Manager, CDOT, dated January 8, 2008, regarding the 
south access point for Riverland Industrial Park and Highway 135. The County has requested 
that CDOT review the overall situation with the south entrance to Riverland and take 
appropriate action. 


 
4. Access onto State Highway 135 is controlled by the Colorado Department of Transportation, 


which has the authority to regulate access onto the State Highway System.   
 
5. Use of individual lots must comply with the Declaration of Protective Covenants for Riverland 


Industrial Park, including, but not limited to, compliance with those provisions which may affect 
employees, parking, the hours of operation, provision of landscaping, snow storage and other 
aesthetic and public health and welfare concerns. 


 
6. Comments have been received from Richard Stenson, Environmental Health Specialist regarding 


the feasibility of the installation of a septic system for the treatment of wastewater and the public 
water system for the subdivision in currently under a Compliance Advisory according to the 
Safe Drinking Water Act as regulated by the Colorado Department of Public Health and 
Environment.  


 
7. Comments have been received from Scott Wimmer, Crested Butte Fire Protection District 


September 7, 2007 indicating that he had reviewed the site and had no issues with the 
proposed grade of the driveway. 


 
8. The applicant will record a deed restriction on  Lot 4 requiring exclusion of tenant uses identified 


in Part XV 15-101 Requirements for Business, Commercial, Industrial Waste Systems, Table 5 
Point Source Operations Excluded from County ISDS Permits, and acknowledgement that in the 
event of septic absorption field failure, and no other suitable location is available on the lot, then 
the lot owner will provide for the removal of the absorption field materials, provide legal disposal, 
and provide for the reconstruction of a new absorption field with replacement materials in the 
same location. 


 
9. Approval of the land use change permit does not constitute approval of a building or individual 


sewage disposal system permit. Each of those permits is required to be obtained by the 
applicants, and the construction and use of the improvements shall comply with the Uniform 
Building Code, American Disabilities Act and the Gunnison County Individual Sewage Disposal 
System Regulations. 


 
10. This permit is limited to activities described within the "Project Description" of this application, 


and as depicted on the site plan submitted as part of this application.  Any use other than that 
allowed by the Declaration of Protective Covenants for Riverland Industrial Park will require 
either an application for amendment of this permit, or submittal of an application for a new 
permit, in compliance with applicable requirements of the Gunnison County Land Use 
Resolution. 


 







Lot 4, Riverland Industrial Park – PC Decision 


 


6  


11. This review and decision incorporates, but is not limited to, all the documentation submitted to 
the County and included within the Planning Office file relative to this application; including all 
exhibits, references and documents as included therein. 


 


DECISION: 
The Gunnison County Planning Commission, having reviewed and evaluated this application and 
having reached the above Findings, determines that LUC #2007-02, Lot 4, Riverland Industrial 
Park, Filing No. 1, John Nichols, is approved with the following conditions and that approval be 
memorialized by a recorded Certificate of Minor Impact Approval, including the language of these 
conditions and notations: 
 
1. This permit is limited to activities described within the "Project Description" of this application, 


and as depicted on the site plan titled “Replat of  Riverland Lot 4”, prepared by Meridian Design, 
submitted with the application, and architectural elevation renderings prepared by Todd Carroll 
Design, dated 10/25/2006.  Expansion or change of this use will require either an application for 
amendment of this permit, or submittal of an application for a new permit, in compliance with 
applicable requirements of the Gunnison County Land Use Resolution. 


 
2. Uses on this lot shall comply with the Declaration of Protective Covenants for Riverland 


Industrial Park.  
 
3. Uses on this lot shall comply with the Gunnison County Individual Sewage Disposal System 


Regulations.  
 
4. No building or septic permits shall be issued until the applicant provides the Planning 


Department with documentation, recorded with the Gunnison County Clerk & Recorder, of a 
deed restriction on Lot 4, including:   


 
a. The exclusion of tenant uses identified in Part XV 15-101 Requirements for Business, 


Commercial, Industrial Waste Systems, Table 5 Point Source Operations Excluded from 
County ISDS Permits. 


 
b. Acknowledgement that in the event of septic absorption field failure, and no other suitable 


location is available on the lot, then the lot owner will provide for the removal of the 
absorption field materials, provide legal disposal, and provide for the reconstruction of a 
new absorption field with replacement materials in the same location. 


 
5. No Certificate of Occupancy shall be issued until the applicant provides the Planning 


Department with documentation that the Compliance Advisory, according to the Safe Drinking 
Water Act, as regulated by the Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment, 
concerning the public water system for the subdivision is lifted.  


 
6. No overnight parking of heavy equipment is allowed on the upper parking lot. 
 
7. The applicant shall notify tenants and visitors that the north entrance to Riverland is the legal 


access to Highway 135. 
 
8. This permit may be revoked or suspended if Gunnison County determines that any material fact 


set forth herein or represented by the applicant was false or misleading, or that the applicant 
failed to disclose facts necessary to make any such fact not misleading. 


 
9. A cost estimate for the landscaping stock, and labor for installation of the landscaping, and 


referencing the landscaping plan as shown on the submitted site plan shall be submitted, for 







Lot 4, Riverland Industrial Park – PC Decision 


 


7  


preparation of a  Landscaping Development Improvements Agreement by the Gunnison County 
Attorney’s office, which shall be executed by the Board of County Commissioners.   The 
Certificate of Minor Impact shall not be recorded until this condition is fulfilled. 


 
10. That a performance bond, letter of credit or other means of surety acceptable to the County, 


shall be submitted to cover costs of the landscaping, including stock and labor for installation, 
plus 25 percent and that said surety be retained by the County for a period of two growing 
seasons to ensure the survival of the landscaping.  The Certificate of Minor Impact shall not be 
recorded until this condition is fulfilled.  


 
11. The removal or material alteration of any physical feature of the property (geological, 


topographical or vegetative) relied on herein to mitigate a possible conflict shall require a new 
or amended land use change permit. 


 
12. Approval of this permit is not effective until the Certificate of Minor Impact Approval is recorded 


with the Gunnison County Clerk and Recorder. 





